
ABABABAB    
EMPLOYMENT COMMITTEE 
 

THURSDAY 26 JANUARY 2012 
3.00 PM 
 

Bourges/Viersen Rooms - Town Hall 
 
 
 

AGENDA  

 Page No 

 
1. Apologies for Absence 

 
 

2. Declarations of Interest 
 

 

3. Minutes of the Meetings held on: 
 

 

 3.1 24 November 2011 
 

1 - 6 

 3.2 22 December 2011 
 

7 - 8 

4. Changes to Employee Policies and Procedures 
 

9 - 40 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Committee Members: 
 

Councillors: Benton (Chairman), Lamb (Vice Chairman), Fitzgerald, Holdich, Seaton, Swift and 
Khan 

 
Substitutes: Councillors: Walsh and Miners 

 
Further information about this meeting can be obtained from Gemma George on telephone 01733 

452268 or by email – gemma.george@peterborough.gov.uk 

 

 

There is an induction hearing loop system available in all meeting rooms.  Some of the 
systems are infra-red operated, if you wish to use this system then please contact 
Gemma George on 01733 452268 as soon as possible. 
 

 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



ABABABAB    
 

Minutes of a meeting of the Employment Committee  
held at the Town Hall, Peterborough on 24 November 2011 

 
Members Present: Councillors Benton (Chairman), Cllr Lamb (Vice Chairman) 

Holdich, Swift, Khan, Fitzgerald, Seaton 
 
Officers Present: Gillian Beasley, Chief Executive 
  Mike Kealey, Head of Human Resources 
  Lisa Trowbridge, Senior HR Advisor Policy Development 
  Amy Brown, Solicitor 
  Andy Baker, Internal Health and Safety Adviser 
  Mark Burn, Unison Representative 
  Karen S Dunleavy, Governance Officer 
   
1.  Apologies for Absence 
 
  No apologies were received 
 
2.  Declarations of Interest 
 
  There were no declarations of interest. 
 
3.  Minutes of the Meeting held on 15 September 2011 
   
 The minutes of the meeting held on 15 September 2011 were agreed as a 
 true and accurate record.  
  
4. Appointment of Interim Director of Children’s Services 
 
  The Committee received a report from the Chief Executive which sought its 

approval to appoint Mr Malcolm Newsam as Interim Director of Children’s 
Services and the delegation of the agreement of Mr Newsam’s terms and 
conditions, and any changes thereto, to the Chief Executive. 

 
 Members were advised that the Council had a statutory obligation to appoint a 

Director of Children’s Services under s18 of the Children Act 2004.  At the 
previous meeting of the Employment Committee, Members had been advised 
that ongoing discussions were being held with Mr Newsam to secure his 
services upon completion of his current appointment in November 2011. 

 
 Members were advised that Mr Newsam specialised in the turnaround of 

failing departments and had the support of both Ofsted and the Department of 
Education (DfE) as a suitable appointment for Peterborough.  

 
 The Chief Executive addressed the Committee and gave an overview of Mr 

Newsam’s previous engagements and achievements. Members were  
informed that Mr Newsam would work to achieve the required improvements 
identified within the Ofsted report and the Council’s improvement plan, and 
would assist the Chief Executive in the appointment of a permanent Director 
of Children’s Services. 
 

1



 The following questions, observations and comments were made by 
 Members: 
 

• Members commented that the cost of the appointment had been reported 
somewhat negatively in the press, however the cost of ensuring the 
safeguarding of the children of Peterborough could not be measured in 
monetary terms and it was important that the right person was appointed.  

 

• Members sought clarification over why an interim appointment was being 
explored rather than appointing a permanent Executive Director of 
Children’s Services?  The Chief Executive advised Members that the 
current Interim Executive Director of Children’s Services, Mr Adrian 
Loades, was due to end his contract with Peterborough City Council and a 
recruitment exercise to appoint a permanent Executive Director, would 
take six months or more.   

 

• The Committee recognised that employing talented Social Services 
Directors nationally was a difficult task.   

 

• Members wished it to be noted that any decisions made to approve the 
appointment of Officers were done so as a Committee on behalf of the 
Council.  

  

• Members commented that there was a responsibility under the Corporate 
Parenting Group (CPG) umbrella for all Members to attend CPG 
meetings. These meetings allowed for officers to be questioned on all 
aspects of the services provided for children in care.  

 

• The Chief Executive advised Members that Mr Newsam would also assist 
with the appointment of a permanent successor to the post of Executive 
Director of Children’s Services. 

 
The Unison Representative addressed the Committee and highlighted a 
number of concerns, including the number of redundancies faced by staff at 
Peterborough City Council, and: 

 

• The importance of the continuity of service and best practice for 
Children’s Services; 

• That the timescales to appoint a permanent successor to the post of 
Executive Director of Children’s Services were realistic; 

• Whether the two specialists, appointed by Mr Loades, would be 
leaving PCC; and  

• Whether Mr Newsam would be appointing two specialists from his 
previous appointment at Kent. 

 
The Chief Executive provided the following responses: 

 

• The process to find a successor for the Executive Director of 
Children’s Services was intended to take six months; and 

• Any specialist appointments would be for Mr Newsam to assess once 
in post.  Members would be advised accordingly. 

 
The Unison Representative wished it to be noted that gratitude was extended 
to Mr Loades for his achievements since his appointment at Peterborough 
City Council.  

2



 

• Concerns were raised as to whether the proper processes had been followed 
to replace the Interim Director of Children’s Services, and had the 
appointment been informed through the scrutiny process?  The Chairman of 
the Employment Committee advised that Members had been informed by the 
Chief Executive at the previous meeting of Employment Committee that Mr 
Loades’ appointment was to be a temporary one only and that plans were 
underway to find a replacement. 

 

• Members commented that they supported the Unison Representatives 
comments.  

 

• Members requested that going forward, relevant Committees and Group 
Leaders be kept up to date with regards to all aspects of Children’s Services.  

 

• Members sought confirmation from the Chief Executive as to whether she 
was happy to take on the delegation of the agreement of the terms and 
conditions of Mr Newsam’s appointment?  The Chief Executive confirmed that 
she was happy to take on responsibility for the delegation.   

 
The Chief Executive advised Members that going forward they would be kept up 
to date with the progress being made within Children’s Services and they would 
also be consulted in order to capture the work being carried out in their 
communities.  

 
RESOLVED: 

  
 The Employment Committee: 
 

1)   Appointed Mr Malcolm Newsam as Interim Director of Children’s Services; 
and 

2)   Delegated the agreement of Mr Newsam’s terms and conditions, and any 
changes thereto, to the Chief Executive. 

 
  Reasons for the decision: 
 
 The Council had a statutory duty under s18 of the Children’s Services Act 
 2004, to appoint a Director of Children’s Services. 
 
5. Changes to Employee Policies and Procedures 

 
 The Committee received a report and presentation from the Interim Head of 
 Human Resources, on a number of employment policies, which had been shared 
 with the Joint Consultative Forum (JCF) and approved in principal subject to  the 
 Employment Committee’s approval. 
 
 The report sought the agreement of the Committee to implement changes to 
 employee terms and conditions as appended to the report, thus ensuring that the 
 Council maintained up to date and legal employment policies. 
 
 The Employment Committee was requested to agree and implement the 
 following employment/Health and Safety policies: 
 

i)  Recruitment Policy;  
ii) Social Media Policy; and  
iii) Violence at Work Policy  

3



 
 The following questions observations, comments were made by Members: 
 

• Members sought clarification over the offer of employment being made 
subject to a satisfactory medical?  The Senior HR Advisor for Policy 
Development advised Members that the policy was due to be updated 
following a change in the Discrimination Act and that a person had to be fit 
and well before accepting an appointment of employment. 
 

• Members sought clarification over Peterborough City Council’s definition of 
personal use of social media and whether social media should only be used 
in a professional capacity?  The Head of Human Resources advised 
Members that the policy was intended to make staff aware of what they were 
writing on social media sites and to be mindful of there duty not to put the 
Council into disrepute.   
 

• Members sought clarification over whether staff should be accessing social 
media on a personal basis, whilst carrying out their contracted duties?  The 
Head of Human Resources advised Members that staff were entitled to 
access the social media sites over their break periods.  Members were also 
advised that it was the responsibility of the Service Manager to monitor use 
and to highlight any excessive use within work periods and that a pragmatic 
approach was needed in monitoring.   
 

• Members commented that the wording surrounding acceptable use of social 
media and when it was to be accessed should be made clearer for 
employees.  In addition Members advised that clarification should be provided 
to all employees on the definition of excessive use of social media. 

 
The Unison Representative expressed his gratitude to the Health and Safety 
Team, Members and Senior Officers for the work undertaken to update the 
Health and Safety policies, and that the time and effort which had been 
demonstrated in implementing the updates should be recognised.  
 

• Members sought clarification over how the update to Health and Safety 
policies would be communicated to employees?  Members were advised that 
the intention was for the Health and Safety team to run a campaign to 
communicate the changes and conduct audits to raise awareness. 
 

• Members sought clarification over whether Health and Safety training would 
be offered to all employees or only to those most at risk?  Members were 
advised that each department would be assessed through the Health and 
Safety Committee and that an action plan would be produced to introduce 
the appropriate levels of Health and Safety practices.  

 
 RESOLVED: 
  
 The Employment Committee agreed to implement the following policies: 
 

 i)   Recruitment Policy; 
 ii)  Social Media Policy; and  

  iii)  Violence at Work Policy 
 
  
 
 

4



 Reasons for the decision: 
  

 The replacement of current policies and the implementation of new policies 
would help to ensure that the Council maintained up to date and legal 
employment practices. It would also ensure compliance with the Health and 
Safety at Work Act 1974 and subordinate health and safety legislation and 
approved codes of practice and guidance with respect to the health and safety 
at work of employees. 

  
 
 
 
 

Chairman  
3.00pm – 3.20pm 

5



6

This page is intentionally left blank



ABABABAB    
 
 

Minutes of a Meeting of the Employment Committee  
held at the Town Hall, Peterborough on 22 December 2011 

 
 

Members Present:  Councillors Benton (Chairman), Lamb (Vice Chairman), Holdich, Seaton,  
   Swift and Khan 
 
Also Present:  Councillor Scott - Cabinet Member for Children’s Services 
 
Officers present:  Malcolm Newsam, Executive Director, Children’s Services 
    Mike Kealey, Acting Head of HR 
    Mandy Pullen, HR Manager, Children’s Services 
    Alex Daynes, Senior Governance Officer 

 
1. Apologies for Absence 

 
              There were no apologies for absence received.  

 
2. Declarations of Interest 
 
 There were no declarations of interest. 
 
3.      Exclusion of Press and Public 
 

              In accordance with Standing Orders, Members agreed that agenda item 4 contained exempt   
information as defined by paragraphs 1, 2 and 3 of Schedule 12A of Part 1 of the Local 
Government Act 1972 and that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighed 
the public interest in disclosing the information, therefore the press and public were excluded 
from the meeting. 

  
4.      Interviews for the Post of Assistant Director – Safeguarding Families and Communities 
 
 One candidate was interviewed for the post of Assistant Director – Safeguarding Families 

and Communities. 
 
 RESOLVED: to appoint Ms Susan Wescott, who was currently employed as Assistant 

Director, Children’s Services, at Lincolnshire County Council.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

      Chairman 
                                                                                                                              9.15am to 11.45am 

 

7



8

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

EMPLOYMENT COMMITTEE  
 

 
AGENDA ITEM No. 4 

26 JANUARY 2012 PUBLIC REPORT 

 

Cabinet Member(s) responsible: Councillor Gr Uff Marco Cereste – Leader of the Council 
and Cabinet Member for Growth, Strategic Planning and 
Economic Development 

Contact Officer(s): Mike Kealey -  Acting Head of Human Resources 

 

Tel.  (01733) 384500 

        

 

CHANGES TO EMPLOYEE POLICIES AND PROCEDURES  
 

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S 
FROM : Trade Union Representatives Deadline date : N.A. 

 
That Employment Committee agrees to implement the following employment policy and 
procedures: 
 

i)  Temporary Workers Policy (Appendix A) and the Use of Fixed Term Workers 
Procedure (Appendix B); and 

ii) Recruitment and Selection Procedure (Appendix C) 
 
 

 
 

1. ORIGIN OF REPORT 
 

1.1 This report is submitted to the Employment Committee following a referral from the Joint 
Consultative Forum on 12th January 2012.  

 
2. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT 
 

2.1 The purpose of this report is to ensure that the council maintains up to date and legal 
employment policies. 

 
2.2 This report is for the Committee to consider under its Terms of Reference No. 2.3.1.2 

‘to determine employee procedures, including dismissal procedures’ and 2.3.1.4 ‘to 
determine local terms and conditions of employment for employees’.  

 
3. TIMESCALE  
 

Is this a Major Policy 
Item/Statutory Plan? 

NO If Yes, date for relevant 
Cabinet Meeting 

N/A 

 
4. BACKGROUND 

 

4.1 The policies below have been prioritised for approval due to the need to introduce policy 
 that will ensure employment policies remain up to date and legal. 

 
4.2  Temporary Workers Policy and Use of Fixed Term Workers Procedure (Appendix A    

and Appendix B) 
 

i) This policy and procedure will replace the previous Use of Fixed Term/Temporary 
Contracts document which was agreed at Employment Committee in July 2006.  The 

9



current policy refers to statutory dismissal procedures for employees on fixed term 
contracts which has since been repealed and replaced by the ACAS Code of Practice 1 
on Disciplinary and Grievance Procedures.  Although the non renewal of fixed term 
contracts on their expiry is specifically excluded from this new code of practice the 
principles of the code in relation to dismissal have been applied to the updated policy 
and procedure.   
 

ii) There is also a new section added which covers the early termination of fixed term 
contracts.  The current document does not refer to early termination.  This leaves the 
council in a position where an early termination may result in payment of full 
remuneration up to the termination date as set out in the fixed term employees terms and 
conditions of employment. 
 

iii) The Policy also refers to guidance which has been produced for managers on the Use of 
Agency Workers.  This guidance has been compiled following introduction of the Agency 
Worker Regulations in October 2010 which gives agency workers rights to access 
amenities and facilities from their first day of their assignment with the council and equal 
treatment in relation to pay and other basic working conditions after a 12 week qualifying 
period. 

 
4.3  Recruitment and Selection Procedure (Appendix C) 

 
i) The new Recruitment Policy was agreed at Employment Committee on 24th November 
2011.  The attached procedure provides managers with the information required to allow 
them to effectively and lawfully carry out a recruitment exercise from start to finish.   
 

5. CONSULTATION 
 

5.1  The joint Trade Unions have been consulted and the statutory policies were agreed at the 
meeting of the Joint Consultative Forum on 12th January 2012.  The council’s legal 
department have also advised on the contents of the Fixed Term Workers Policy and 
Procedure. 
 

5.2  The Recruitment Procedure has also been shared with relevant staff in children’s services 
in respect of safeguarding issues.     

 
6.  ANTICIPATED OUTCOMES 
 
6.1  The above proposed changes to policy and procedures will help to ensure that the council 
 maintains up to date and legal employment practices.  
 
6.2 Once approved by Employment Committee the Temporary Workers Policy and Use of 

Fixed Term Workers Procedure will be placed on InSite and will be accompanied by some 
guidance for managers on the Use of Agency Workers. 

 
6.3 The Recruitment Policy (previously agreed by Employment Committee on 24th November) 

and Procedure will be placed on InSite and the council’s recruitment and selection training 
programme will be audited to ensure consistency.  In addition guidance for managers will 
be placed on InSite which will give further information on best practice along with 
reinforcing statutory requirements. 

 
7.  REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

7.1 These proposed changes to policy and procedures will help to ensure that the council 
maintains up to date and legal employment practices which support the council objectives. 

 
 
 
 
 

10



8.  ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 

8.1  The policies were considered against (a) those published by some other local government 
employers, (b) template policies from legal bodies plus (c) the existing policy, to ensure it 
was a sensible, fair approach which took account of current legislation.    

 
9.  IMPLICATIONS 
 

9.1  The policy and procedures will be reviewed on an ongoing basis and will be amended from 
time to time to ensure legal compliance. 

 
10.  BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 

 
10.1 Initial Equality Impact Assessments have been compiled for the Temporary Workers Policy 

which is available on request.  No adverse impacts were identified and therefore 
progression to a full assessment was not required. 
 
 

  

 

11



12

This page is intentionally left blank



Temporary Workers Policy 

Appendix 1 – for EC Approval 26.01.12 

 

Page 1 of 2 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX A 
 

TEMPORARY WORKERS POLICY 
 

1. Purpose of the policy 

The purpose of this Policy, the Fixed Term Workers – Procedure and the Use of Agency 
Workers – Guidelines is to detail entitlements for workers employed or hired by the council 
on a temporary basis. 
 
2. Scope 

This policy applies to those engaged on a temporary basis either via a fixed term contract 
of employment or via a temporary work agency.  This policy does not apply to contractors 
or consultants who are self employed. 

 
3. Key Principles 

It is the council’s policy that its employees will, as the norm, be employed on permanent 
contracts of employment. 
 
The council will use fixed term contracts in order to employ someone directly under the 
circumstances set out in the Fixed Term Workers – Procedure. 
 
Any employee engaged on a fixed-term contract will be entitled to terms and conditions of 
employment that are not less favourable on a pro rata basis than the terms and conditions 
of a comparable permanent employee, unless there is an objective reason for offering 
different terms. 
 
Fixed-term employees will be treated in the same way as comparable permanent 
employees in relation to opportunities for training, promotion, transfer and appraisal. 
 
Employees on fixed-term contracts or hired through an agency will be informed of all 
available vacancies as they arise via access to Insite. 
 
The council will use temporary agency workers only to provide additional resources and 
allow for flexibility on a short-term basis from time to time. The use of a temporary agency 
worker must be reviewed when approaching a six month period.  Where it is expected the 
duration of the assignment will be for a longer period of time, consideration must be given 
to the use of a fixed term contract. 
 
Agency workers are entitled to access to amenities and facilities from the first day of their 
assignment with the council and in addition agency workers with 12 qualifying weeks 
service on a council assignment will be entitled to equal treatment in relation to pay and 
other basic working conditions detailed in the Use of Agency Workers – Guidelines  
 
4. Additional information  

The process in relation to the initial hiring of agency workers is managed by the council’s 
procurement team and their procedures and polices must be followed. 
 
Whilst employed on a fixed term contract all council policies are applicable including the 
Capability Procedure, Disciplinary Procedure and Grievance Procedure in respect of non-
renewal of a fixed term contract. 
 

 

H
u
m
a
n
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s

 

13



Temporary Workers Policy 

Appendix 1 – for EC Approval 26.01.12 

 

Page 2 of 2 

 

 

 

 

 

This Policy should be read in conjunction with the Fixed Term Workers Procedure and the 
Use of Agency Workers Guidelines, which are both available on Insite. 
 
 

14



Fixed Term Workers – Procedure 

Appendix 2 - For EC Approval 26.01.12 

 

Page 1 of 4 

  

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX B 
 

USE OF FIXED TERM WORKERS PROCEDURE 
 

These guidelines are to provide helpful information to assist the recruitment and management of 
workers engaged by the council in work of a temporary nature by a fixed term contract, it is not intended 
to amount to legal advice. 
 
 

1. Introduction 
 
 

This Procedure should be read in conjunction with the Temporary Workers Policy. 
 
The council is committed to ensuring that it delivers excellent services to its 
customers at all times. The organisation will, where necessary, use fixed term 
contracts of employment to help to fulfil customer demands and maintain the highest 
standards of service. 
 
2. Definition 

 
Fixed-term contracts of employment are those set up either:  
• for a specified period of time (for example, to cover maternity leave) 
• to cover a specific task, or work on a specific project 
 
3. Fixed Term Contracts process  
 
Recruitment of fixed term workers 
 
Where the need for a particular job to be done is clearly temporary, the contract of 
employment offered will be for a fixed term. Firstly, a line manager needs to identify 
whether a post is suitable for a fixed term contract.  The post will be suitable if it 
satisfies one or more of the following conditions: 
 

• it is known in advance that a particular job will come to an end on a specific 
date 

• the employment is for the purpose of completing a particular task 
• the employment is for the purpose of replacing an employee who is to be 

absent from work for a period of time (for example on maternity leave) 
• the post is dependent on external funding and it is thought likely that the 

funding will be available for only a temporary period of time 
 

When recruiting to a fixed term post the start and end date, or duration must be 
clearly stated in the advert and clearly explained at interview. Refer to the 
Recruitment Procedure for details of the council’s standard recruitment processes. 
 
Probation 
 
All fixed term contracts are subject to a probationary period. Please refer to the 
Probation Procedure for further information.  

 

 

H
u

m
a

n
 R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s

 

15



Fixed Term Workers – Procedure 

Appendix 2 - For EC Approval 26.01.12 

 

Page 2 of 4 

  

 

 

 

Pensions 
 
Fixed term employees are entitled to join the pension scheme on the same basis as 
permanent staff, provided they have a contract for more than 3 months. 
 
Extending fixed term contracts  
 
Once an employee has been employed on a fixed term basis it is possible for the line 
manager to extend the contract should there be a genuine requirement for the 
temporary work to continue.  The line manager can extend the contract on a further 
temporary basis by informing HR Support of the revised end date.  
 
If you are unsure as to whether to extend a fixed term contract you must seek advice 
from your HR Business Partner. 
 
Use of successive fixed term contracts 
 
Regulations limit the use of successive fixed-term contracts by imposing a cut-off of 4 
years' continuity of service, after which the employee will automatically achieve 
permanent status, unless there is an objective reason that justifies further renewal for 
a fixed term. Line managers who are extending a fixed term contract beyond 4 years 
must contact their HR Business partner for advice. 
 
4. Termination of a fixed term contract 

 
Expiry of a fixed-term contract 

 
The expiry of a fixed-term contract without renewal is regarded as a dismissal.  An 
example would be a fixed-term contract set up to cover an employee's maternity 
leave, the exact duration of which may not be known at the outset. However, when 
the absent employee returns to work, the replacement employee's fixed-term contract 
will come to an end. 
 
Generally, dismissal on the expiry of a fixed-term contract will be fair provided that: 

• the fixed-term contract was set up for a genuine purpose 

• the purpose of the contract and the reason for its being for a fixed term were 
known to the employee; and  

• the underlying purpose of the contract had ceased to be applicable when the 
employee is dismissed. 

 
Reasons for dismissal 
 
Where line managers do not plan to renew the contract because the employee is 
underperforming, they should refer to the Capability Procedure. Where there are 
conduct issues, line managers should refer to the Disciplinary Procedure.  A fixed 
term employee who wishes to raise a grievance regarding the non-renewal of a fixed 
term contract may refer to the Grievance Policy and Procedure.  
 
Line managers are advised to contact their HR Business Partner if an employee 
becomes pregnant whilst employed by a fixed term contract. Dismissal will 
automatically be unfair if the dismissal is related to pregnancy, childbirth or maternity 
leave. 
 
 

16



Fixed Term Workers – Procedure 

Appendix 2 - For EC Approval 26.01.12 

 

Page 3 of 4 

  

 

 

 

Redundancy 
 
Line Managers must be clear on why they are not renewing the fixed-term contract. If 
the work that the employee was engaged to do has been completed, or the funding 
for the role has come to an end, the reason for the dismissal is likely to be 
redundancy.  
 
Where a fixed term contract expires after 2 years of continuous service whether on 
one or more fixed-term contracts and a genuine redundancy has occurred, the 
employee shall qualify for a redundancy payment. 
 
The council will need to show proper consultation in the period prior to the end of the 
contract, this includes a reasonable attempt to find alternative work within the council 
- just as it would where the redundancy situation concerned an employee on a 
permanent contract. 

 
It is likely to be unlawful to select fixed-term employees for redundancy simply on the 
basis of their fixed-term status. 

 
Dismissal procedures 
 
As soon as practical HR will write to the employee explaining the reason for the non-
renewal of contract and inviting them to a meeting with their manager to discuss the 
matter further. The letter will advise the employee of their right to be accompanied by 
a colleague or trade union representative. 
 
The letter will ask the employee to contact their manager to set up a date to meet 
and will give a timescale by which they must do so. This will vary according to the 
circumstances of the situation but should give the employee time to consider what 
they want to do. 
 
If the employee does not wish to meet and accepts the contract is to end, the line 
manager must inform HR Support of this so they can write to the employee to confirm 
that they do not wish to exercise the right to the meeting and confirm the end date of 
the contract. 

 
The Meeting 
 
The employee should make all reasonable steps to attend the meeting. If the 
employee’s companion is not available on the date set, the employee should propose 
an alternative date within 5 working days of the date set for the meeting. If the 
employee fails to do so, then management will set the date and the meeting will 
proceed without the employee’s companion if they are unable to attend. At the 
meeting the employee should explain why they do not think it appropriate to 
terminate the contract. 
 
Following the meeting the manager should write to the employee with details of the 
decision and the reasons for it. The letter should also notify the employee of their 
right to appeal against the decision, for further information refer to the council’s 
Appeals Procedure. 

17



Fixed Term Workers – Procedure 

Appendix 2 - For EC Approval 26.01.12 

 

Page 4 of 4 

  

 

 

 

 
 
5. Early termination of fixed term contract 
 
Either side may give notice at any time during the life of the contract providing that 
the terms relating to notice have been made explicit and confirmed in writing in the 
letter of appointment and/or contract of employment.  Where there is no early 
termination clause in the contract of employment line managers must seek advice 
from their HR Business Partner.  Notice does not apply in gross misconduct 
situations. 

 
6. Post status changes 

 
There will be occasions when it is decided that the temporary post can be filled on a 
permanent basis for example: - 
 

• The permanent post holder will not be returning to take up the duties of their 
substantive post 

• It is decided that there is a permanent requirement to undertake the duties of 
a post which was conceived as short term 

• Funding is made available to undertake the role in the long term 

• It is accepted that further post holders are required to undertake the duties in 
the long term. 

 
In all normal circumstances the post will need to be advertised as a permanent 
vacancy. It will not be possible to simply ‘slot in’ the temporary employee into the 
post. The council strives to be fair to all of its employees and there may be other 
people also in an ‘at risk’ situation who should be allowed the opportunity of applying 
for the post. 
 
If the temporary employee is placed on the ‘at risk’ register held by the council – this 
will depend on their circumstances - then they will be offered a non-competitive 
interview along with other suitable candidates from the ‘at risk’ register. 
 

18



Recruitment Procedure 

Recruitment Procedure  

 Appendix 2 - For EC Approval 26.01.12 

 

Page 1 of 21 

 

 

 

APPENDIX C 
 
Recruitment & Selection  
Procedure & Management Guidance 
 

1.0 Introduction 

We have in place a Recruitment & Selection policy which outlines the principles 
which must be followed to guide decision making in recruitment.  The policy is 
supported by this procedure and guidance which outlines what should actually be 
done to achieve the outcomes.   
 

2.0 The role of recruitment and selection 

Recruitment and Selection must: 
• meet the needs of the modernising organisation  
• provide a quality service to job seekers that is fair, transparent and equally 

accessible  
• attract good recruits from across the community  
• help promote a good image of the city council as an employer and service 

provider  
• protect the vulnerable 
• be consistent and promote the city council as a single employer  
• support the council’s Equality Policy  
 

3.0 Training 
 
All Line Managers who take part in selection interviews must have attended the 
Council’s Recruitment & Selection and Interviewing Skills training or sit on a panel 
where at least one member of the panel has attended this training. 
 
When recruiting to posts where the duties involve working with children, the recruiting 
manager must ensure compliance with the ‘Key Safeguarding in Employment 
Standards’ as operated and endorsed by the Safeguarding Board (this usually 
includes Personal Interviews that must only be conducted by personnel trained in this 
technique).  At least one member of the panel should have undertaken Safer 
Employment training and passed the assessment.  There may also be a 
children/young people recruitment panel involved in the selection and decision 
making process.   
 
4.0 Review the vacancy 
 
Before launching the process to fill any vacant post it should be carefully assessed to 
make sure that the post is actually still required to meet organisational needs. 
 
Key questions to consider 

• Is the job actually still required?  
• Is it fulfilling its purpose?  
• Can the duties be better distributed between existing staff?  
• Does the job design reflect future business needs?  
• Are the working hours and working arrangements still appropriate?  

 

H
u
m
a
n
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s

 

19



Recruitment Procedure 

Recruitment Procedure  

 Appendix 2 - For EC Approval 26.01.12 

 

Page 2 of 21 

 

 

 
5.0 Job Description & Person Specification 
 
For the recruitment exercise to be successful it is essential that the job description 
and person specification are up to date, accurate and present the job and the council 
in a positive way.  If the job is new or has changed significantly then it must be 
evaluated through the job evaluation process before advertising in order for a grade 
to be determined.   
 
All relevant comments given by the previous post holder at their exit interview and/or 
exit questionnaire should be taken into account when drafting revised job 
descriptions and person specifications. 
 
The Managers Guidance – Job Descriptions and Person Specifications provides 
helpful guidance on writing effective job descriptions and person specs. 
 
6.0 Deciding how to fill the vacancy – (a) At Risk employees 
 
Current council policy requires that employees on the “at risk” (of redundancy, or 
requiring medical re-deployment) register should initially be considered for vacant 
posts. Such employees must be able to meet the basic requirements of the vacancy 
as set out in the person specification and satisfy the recruitment panel that they could 
undertake the full duties of the post given appropriate support and training, within a 
reasonable period of time. 
 
Where there is more than one “at risk” person interested in the post an internal 
application form must be completed by them all and sent to Business Support (HR).  
Interviews can be arranged before the closing date but no offer must be made before 
the closing date to allow all at risk applications to be considered.   However, in 
exceptional circumstances (i.e. where there is only one at risk applicant and their 
employment is due to end before the closing date) employment may be confirmed 
subject to checks. 
 
Recruiting managers will be responsible for liaising with HR Business Partners to 
establish whether there are any prospective at risk candidates who should be 
considered for vacant posts when they arise. 
 
In the event of any dispute over the suitability of an at risk candidate for a vacant post 
the HR Business Partner covering the department will decide if they match closely 
enough with the requirements of the post to be appointed.  Their decision will be 
final. 
 
7.0 Deciding how to fill the vacancy – (b) other possible options 
 
Returning to a previous short list 
If a similar job in the same work area, at the same grade, was filled within the 
previous six months and there was more than one appointable candidate it is 
permissible to offer the job to the next ranked applicant from that recruitment 
process. 
 
Recruitment through Jobcentre Plus or an Employment Regeneration Centre 
There are services offered by Jobcentre Plus to assist with recruitment which include 
various government initiatives, or a personalised recruitment approach provided by a 
dedicated Account Manager.  Support and advice is available from the HR Business 
Partner in the first instance. 

20



Recruitment Procedure 

Recruitment Procedure  

 Appendix 2 - For EC Approval 26.01.12 

 

Page 3 of 21 

 

 

 
Executive Search 
For some jobs, (e.g. technical or senior management roles, or hard-to-fill professional 
posts), it may be appropriate to contact known, suitable potential candidates to 
encourage them to apply. It may also be decided to use a reputable consultancy firm 
to assist in attaining a good short list. In all such cases, the job must also be 
advertised on the open market to attract the widest possible pool of suitable 
candidates; all candidates are assessed in the same way and the panel makes the 
selection decisions at each stage. The approval of the Head of Human Resources is 
necessary in all cases where executive search techniques are used. 
 
Generic Pools/ Open Recruitment Drives/ Job Seeker Databases 
With the future development of generic ‘job families’, it may be possible to introduce 
recruitment processes that seek to identify pools of potential candidates for 
vacancies that arise on a regular basis (depending on the role, this may be done on a 
corporate or departmental basis). Similarly databases of potential candidates can be 
held and accessed as vacancies arise. 
 
Secondments 
The vacancy may be suitable as a secondment opportunity.  This is particularly 
effective if the post is a time limited project or financed through a specific grant or 
time limited funding.  Secondments are an excellent way of employees improving 
their self development as part of a PDR objective.   
 
Other potential options 

• Recruitment to a fixed term contract, most appropriate for covering a particular 
task/project or where the post may be deleted at a later date due to 
organisational change.  Refer to the Use of Fixed Term Workers Procedure 
<insert link>. 

 

• Consolidating an employee into the post which they have actually been doing 
on a temporary or acting-up basis for a period of 12 months (providing they 
were originally appointed through the Recruitment and Selection process and 
all recruitment checks are in place or are repeated). 

 
8.0 Convening a recruitment panel 
 
The chair of the panel (the recruiting manager) is the person responsible for 
coordinating the process and ensuring it is carried out fairly. 
 
Panels must have at least two members. If anyone involved has not taken part in 
recruitment before then there needs to be at least three panel members. An 
additional member with technical knowledge may also be necessary. The makeup of 
the panel should, wherever possible, aim to reflect the community served. Observers 
on panels should not be part of the decision making process. 
 
If there is to be a personal interview undertaken then this must be carried out by 
someone who has been specifically trained in this technique.  
 
The role of the Recruiting Manager supported by the Panel 
 

• Plan the process  
• Review the job description and person specification  
• Agree the information for applicants  

21



Recruitment Procedure 

Recruitment Procedure  

 Appendix 2 - For EC Approval 26.01.12 

 

Page 4 of 21 

 

 

• Write the advertisement  
• Plan and design the assessment methods, i.e. interview questions, tests, 

exercises  
• Assess the applicants  
• Select the appointable applicant 
• Contact the unsuccessful applicants to confirm the outcome  
• Contact the successful applicant to confirm the outcome 

 
Planning the Process 
Effective recruitment and selection demands good planning. The time it takes to fill a 
vacancy can be significantly reduced by agreeing a plan and allocating time scales 
right at the start. This will affect the efficiency and cost-effectiveness of the process 
and also enable candidates to organise their own plans accordingly. 
 
Declaring an interest 
In accordance with the Employee Code of Conduct <insert link>, panel members 
must withdraw from the process if a family member or close friend applies for the job, 
or if their knowledge of the applicant is such that they cannot maintain objectivity. 
 
Continuity 
Wherever possible the same people should serve on the panel throughout the entire 
process to maintain consistency and ensure fair treatment of all candidates. If a 
substitute is necessary then they need to become familiar with all the applications 
and receive a thorough brief on the process so far. 
 
9.0 Methods of assessment 
 
The assessment methods to be used in the selection process should be carefully 
considered by the panel to determine whether in addition to an interview, other ways 
of assessing the candidates is essential to the recruitment exercise.  
 
Work based exercises and exercises that test knowledge, skill and ability can 
improve the quality and quantity of information available as the basis for selection 
decisions. They also allow candidates to demonstrate how they meet specific 
requirements in action, rather than simply relying on what they actually say at an 
interview. 
 
The choice and construction of any assessment method must flow from the 
requirements of the job in question. The level of testing must be appropriate to the 
essential criteria required to actually effectively carry out the roles and responsibilities 
of the job.  Use of a range of assessment tools for senior management recruitment 
may prove to be a cost effective investment. In all cases, any proposed assessment 
used must be relevant to tasks required for the job and reliable.   
 
Further information and advice on assessment methods including how and for what 
purpose they may be used, suggested levels/types of job for which they may be 
relevant and equality considerations is available from the HR Business Partner.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

22



Recruitment Procedure 

Recruitment Procedure  

 Appendix 2 - For EC Approval 26.01.12 

 

Page 5 of 21 

 

 

 
10.0 The actual process 
 

The process 
 
 

Complete a Recruitment 

Request and Authorisation  
Form 

Secure approval from your  

director, HR Business  
Partner and Accountant 

Secure approval of 

Directors Board 

Review JD and person 

specification – revise if 
needed 

Complete a Vacancy Notification 

Form (VNF) including shortlisting 
questions and Advert Template 

Send all documents to HR 

Support to action by  
Monday 12 noon 

Access to IE7 – if not  

request through ICT 

 
 
 

23



Recruitment Procedure 

Recruitment Procedure  

 Appendix 2 - For EC Approval 26.01.12 

 

Page 6 of 21 

 

 

 
 
11.0 Forms to complete 
 

RECRUITMENT REQUEST AND AUTHORISATION FORM 
 

This form must be approved via the Directors Board meeting prior to any recruitment 
activity commencing. 

 

Vacancy for 
which approval 
sought 

 

Grade of Post  New or Existing 
Post 

 

Post Type: 
Permanent / Temp 
/ Fixed term etc.. 

 End date (if 
temporary) 

 

Date post vacant  Total cost of post £ 

Reason for 
requesting to fill 
vacancy 

 

 

 

Total headcount 
in area of vacancy  

Number of posts 
currently vacant in 
this area 

 

Officer requesting 
authority to 
recruit 

 Date:  

 

To be completed by Operations Directorate only 

Head of Service 
authority to recruit 

 Date:  

To be completed at Directors Board 

Directors authority 
to recruit to position 

 Date:  

Reason for 
decision 

 

 

 

 

Suitable for job-share:  
(if no please provide explanation) 

 

Have alternative arrangements to cover the 
post been considered? 

 

 

Previous post holder:  

Car Parking Status: Yes / No 

24



Recruitment Procedure 

Recruitment Procedure  

 Appendix 2 - For EC Approval 26.01.12 

 

Page 7 of 21 

 

 

Is this post an approved Key User? A manager can apply for Key User status for a new 
post by submitting a Key User Status Application 
Form to their HR Business Partner 

CRB check applicable to post: None  / Standard  / Enhanced 

Will this post include working with children or 
vulnerable adults? 

 

Yes  /  No 

If Yes then it is an exempt post under the Rehabilitation of 
Offenders Act and spent convictions must be detailed on 
applications 

 

 

Signed off by Group 
Accountant: 

 Date:  

Cost code: 
01 

  00000 00000 00000 

Signed by HR Business 
Partner: 

 Date:  

‘At risk register’ checked 
by HRBP 

Yes / No Suitable applicant(s): Yes / No 

 

GUIDANCE NOTES 

• Since January 2009 it is necessary to complete this form and submit to 
Directors Board prior to any recruitment activity commencing 

• Head of Service sign off is required in the Operations directorate or other 
areas of the business that have been instructed to seek Head of Service or 
Assistant Director sign off 

• Once the form is complete please forward to Sally Goulden to co-ordinate 
Directors Board approval, email to sally.goulden@peterborough.gov.uk  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

25



Recruitment Procedure 

Recruitment Procedure  

 Appendix 2 - For EC Approval 26.01.12 

 

Page 8 of 21 

 

 

 
 

VACANCY NOTIFICATION FORM 
Please complete all sections of this form including advert template over the page. 
Once Completed please return to HRSupport@peterborough.gov.uk by Monday 12 noon 

 
Check List  - Managers must ensure these are completed before submitting the form. 
Authorisation form from Directors Board (Social Worker posts are exempt)   Yes/No 
Authorisation Email from Jon Lewis or Sally Goulden  Yes/No  
Job Description and Person Spec  Yes/No  
Vacancy Notification form   Yes/No 
Access to Internet Explorer 7  Yes/No (If no – You can find the Authorisation Request to have this installed on InSite.  

Once completed please email to MYICT@peterborough.gov.uk) 

Recruiting Manager: 
Tel: 
Admin Contact (if applicable) 

Date: 

Short listing Panel  
Chair: 
Panel Member 1:                                                                Panel Member 2 (if necessary): 

Cost Code                       01  00175    

Department –  
 
 

Post Number: 
Is this an existing, new or amended post? 
If new has this post been job evaluated – please 
supply JE number (the B number) 

Title of job to be Advertised: 
 

Salary Range: Grade 
 

If there is more than 1 post please state number of posts to be advertised: 
 

No of Hours per week: Perm or Temp Position: 
 

If Temporary please supply the Contracted End Date: 
 

CRB Required: Yes/No 
If Yes is it Controlled/Regulated/Neither (please state) 

Location: 

Is this for the Better Outlook jobs bulletin internal applicants only? 

 

External Media – Specify publications required: 
 
 

Insertion Date required: 
 

Advert Text  
Please note the recruiting manager is responsible for completing the advert template – over the page. 

 
Questions – E Recruitment allows up to 2 Pre Screening Questions (this can stop applicants applying who are not 

suitable for the post e.g. Do you have the right to work in the UK?) and to answer up to 10 shortlisting questions which 
will demonstrate their experience. 
 
Using the Personal Specification of the post please supply up to 2 Pre Screening Questions and up to 10 shortlisting 
questions 
 
Pre Screening Questions – Please be aware that these will generate a Yes/No response 
 
1. 2. 
 
Applicants will be then be asked to carry out the following in their Supporting Statement: 
 
‘You should use this opportunity to demonstrate how you meet each of the Essential and Desirable Criteria of the 
Person Specification relating to the post you have applied for. Please remember the quality of your response to this 
section will determine whether or not you are short listed for an interview. 
 
You should describe your knowledge, experience, skills and abilities gained from your paid and voluntary work, plus 
studies, hobbies, etc. 
 
Please ensure your information is structured clearly using headings to match each criteria in the Person Specification’ 
 
 

 

26



Recruitment Procedure 

Recruitment Procedure  

 Appendix 2 - For EC Approval 26.01.12 

 

Page 9 of 21 

 

 

 
 
Advert Template 

 
INFORMATION FOR RECRUITING MANAGER 

 
The Vacancy Notification Form and Advert Template needs to be returned to the HR Support 

Inbox by Monday 12 noon  
 

Please note the job vacancy will be advertised the following week following approval of the 
advert (if external) by the Recruiting Manager. 

 
 

Maximum 80 Words (Body Text) for PCC Website and Better Outlook 
Maximum 40 Words (Body Text) for External Publications e.g. Peterborough Evening Telegraph. 

 
 

The advert template below is an example of how it will appear in Better Outlook.  
Please complete sections - Sub Text and Main Advert Text for Post. 

 

Title of Post to be 
Advertised  

(to be completed by HR Support) 

Salary Band 
 

(to be completed by HR Support) 

Hours per week 
 

(to be completed by HR Support) 

Location of Post 
 

(to be completed by HR Support) 

Sub Text for Post 
Please note the Recruiting Manager is responsible for providing wording for the advert 

One line required to sell 
the job/service 

 

 Main Advert Text for Post 
Please note the Recruiting Manager is responsible for providing wording for the advert  

 
Please ensure that you are happy with the wording BEFORE submitting the Vacancy Notification Form to HR 

Support 
 

Please Note you WILL NOT be contacted to view / approve proofs. 
(The only exception to this, is if your advert is to be advertised in an External Publication and there is an 

advertising cost involved). 

 
Please ensure the 

wording for the advert 
captures  

a)main duties and 
responsibilities of the 

post and 
 b) key skills that are 
required as outlined in 
Job Description & 

Person Specification 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
12.0 Information to applicants 
 
The council has a corporate job application pack which is used across all 
departments and all vacancies.  It exists to promote professionalism and the image of 
the council as an employer by providing a ‘one organisation’ approach. All applicants 
will receive the same details about the job.  This will contain, as a minimum: 
 

• a covering letter 

• a copy of the job description and person specification 

• the standard application form 

27



Recruitment Procedure 

Recruitment Procedure  

 Appendix 2 - For EC Approval 26.01.12 

 

Page 10 of 21 

 

 

• guidance notes on the completion of the application 

• a copy of (a) the council’s policy on equalities and (b) the employment of ex-
offenders 

 
For senior posts outside of Children’s Services and Adult Services, Curriculum Vitaes 
(CVs), letters of application and written submissions may be acceptable as an 
alternative to full completion of the supplied application form.  However, if the 
applicant is selected for the job then they must complete a full application form before 
the conditional offer stage.   
 
Care should be taken not to overburden applicants with too much information that is 
inappropriate for the particular post and pool of applicants. 
 
13.0 The advertisement 
 
The aim of placing an advert should be to attract a sufficient number of suitable 
candidates, all of whom possess the necessary skills, experience and qualifications 
to do the job effectively. A poorly or vaguely worded advert may result in a large 
number of applications, many of which will be unsuitable; this will waste time and 
resources both for the council and the applicants. 
 
The method of advertising may determine the style of the actual advert.  Using the 
council’s web portal allows the use of appropriate words and pictures in a different 
way to a standard newspaper advert would. 
 
An advert should: 

• create a positive impression of the council  

• be honest and truthful 

• provide a clear and accurate picture of the council, the role, the level of 
seniority, and the type of candidate being sought 

• be pitched at the right level to appeal to suitable candidates;  

• make it clear how to apply 

• make clear the council’s commitment to the safeguarding of children and 
vulnerable adults 

• indicate whether the job is designated as regulated activity and if a CRB 
check will be required 

• ideally state the interview date or week in which the interviews will take place 
 
All jobs appear in Better Outlook (Online and hard copy versions).  More detailed 
advice on producing a good advertisement, and marketing your job can be found in 
the Managers Guidance - Advertising. 
 
14.0 Politically Restricted Posts  
 
If the job is on the council’s list of politically restricted posts, this must be clear to 
candidates in both the job advert and throughout the recruitment process. 
 
The Local Government and Housing Act 1989 places a number of restrictions on 
posts which are defined as ‘politically sensitive’.  Where the vacancy is one of these 
‘sensitive’ posts, it means that the person who is appointed to the post will not be 
able to: - 
 

• be a candidate, or prospective candidate for election as an MP, MEP or 
Councillor 

28



Recruitment Procedure 

Recruitment Procedure  

 Appendix 2 - For EC Approval 26.01.12 

 

Page 11 of 21 

 

 

• ‘hold office’ i.e. an elected appointment in a political party 

• ‘canvass’ at elections for a political party 

• speak or write in public in a manner which appears to be designed to affect public 
support for a political party 

 
15.0 Short listing the candidates objectively and without discrimination 
 
After the closing date, Business Support (HR) will send an email notification to the 
recruiting manager informing them of (a) the number of applicants and (b) requesting 
confirmation of who will be on the panel. An email will then be sent to each of those 
panel members inviting them to undertake the short listing online.  The panel 
members should read each application individually and carefully compare against the 
person specification to establish whether the person meets the essential criteria 
needed for the job. The full panel should then discuss together these assessments 
and reach final agreement on which applicants should actually be on the short list.  
 
Applicants must only be measured against the requirements outlined in the person 
specification.  All decisions must be recorded online. The original applications and 
written notes of reasons for short listing or rejecting applicants will be retained 
electronically for six months from the date that an appointment decision is made.  
This information can be accessed by Business Support (HR) via the website archive. 
 
The information seen by those undertaking the short listing will anonomise the 
applicant’s details.  The panel will only have access to qualifications, employment 
history, and responses to short listing questions.  If managers need to have access to 
more information for safer recruitment reasons then this is possible and should be 
requested through the business support (HR) team. 
 
Personal information given on the application form should not form part of the short 
listing process but all applications should be scrutinised to ensure that they are fully 
completed, and any discrepancies are highlighted. 
 
• Do not make generalised assumptions about applicants and their suitability for a 

particular type of work.  
• Ensure records are kept of the reasons for the rejection of job applicants at the 

short listing stage.  
• Take care not to draw adverse inferences from the presentation of an application 

form if the ability to produce fluent written communication is not an essential 
requirement.  

 
It may be that the number of short listable candidates is more than a manageable 
number to interview. In this case the panel can take one of the options below: 

 
• Remove from the short list any candidates who did not quite meet all the 

essential criteria but thought it worth exploring the areas of uncertainty at 
interview - time and numbers permitting;  

• Only interview those who meet both the essential and the desirable criteria 
• Treat the pool as a long list and invite all to a next stage assessment using a 

suitable test or assessment exercise to arrive at a final short list from the top 
performers. 

 
If a disabled applicant has requested an adjustment to the job to overcome a 
disabling barrier to their application, the panel must take the request seriously and be 
open to all possibilities for achieving a reasonable adjustment. An HR Business 

29



Recruitment Procedure 

Recruitment Procedure  

 Appendix 2 - For EC Approval 26.01.12 

 

Page 12 of 21 

 

 

Partner will work with the recruiting manager to consider adjustments. Such a 
request should not be used as a means of reducing the short list to a manageable 
number. 
 

• If one or more of the short listed candidates indicates they are disabled then it 
is essential to use an accessible venue  

• Panels may need to adjust any of the interview or assessment arrangements 
to remove identified disabling barriers  

Further information on short listing is available in the Managers Guidance – Short 
listing & Interviewing. 
 
16.0 Arrangements for interviews 
 
Interviews should be scheduled as soon after the closing date as reasonably 
possible, as delays may lead to a loss of applicants.      
 
Business Support (HR) will work with panels to inform short listed candidates that 
they are invited to interview.   
 
Letters or e-mails to all short listed candidates should include: 

• Date, time and place of their interview with the name of someone to contact 
on their arrival 

• What the interview will consist of and details regarding any test/s or 
presentations that will be required 

• Where relevant, what visual aids will be available for presentations 

• A request that the applicant contacts the author of the letter/message if they 
have any special requirements in relation to the interview (related to access 
to the venue or any other special need related to disability)* 

• The need to bring proof that the applicant is permitted to work in the UK.   

• Details of any additional documentation they should bring with them 
(including proof of qualifications, registration documents, examples of work 
etc). 

 
*If it is necessary to make arrangements for any special requirements then Business 
Support (HR) will support the manager to facilitate the adjustments required.  
 
17.0 Right to work in the UK 
 
As part of the recruitment process, applicants must bring with them to the interview 
evidence of their right to work in the UK.  Under the Immigration, Asylum & 
Nationality Act 2006, employers should, prior to allowing a job applicant to start work 
ensure that they have the right to work in the UK.  Full details are given in the 
Managers Guidance – Preventing Illegal Working   
 
18.0 The interview 
 
The recruiting manager will need to ensure that copies of the online application forms 
have been printed off for use by the panel members at the interview. 
 
A structured interview should form a core part of every recruitment and selection 
exercise. For some jobs it will be sufficient and appropriate as the only method of 
assessment used. Where other assessment methods are used the interview is 
usually the last stage. 
 

30



Recruitment Procedure 

Recruitment Procedure  

 Appendix 2 - For EC Approval 26.01.12 

 

Page 13 of 21 

 

 

Good interviews should have a clear plan, which help to keep the panel objective and 
focused throughout. However, there must be room for flexibility and the necessary 
freedom for the skilled interviewers to use probing, supplementary and/or additional 
questions as required. 
 
Detailed advice and guidance on interviewing are provided in the Managers 
Guidance – Short listing & Interviewing. 
 
19.0 Additional information – posts working with vulnerable adults 
 
The National Service Framework and ‘Valuing People’ documents set the strategic 
service development for older people and people with learning disabilities 
respectively. The National Care Standards Commission have set national minimum 
standards for care homes for older people.  These documents focus on working in 
partnership and therefore promote the participation of service users in recruitment 
and training. 
 
Managers should always consider how service users could be involved in any 
recruitment and selection exercise. Options would include a visit to the work place to 
meet up and chat with residents or service users, or including service users on the 
recruitment panel.  All service user involvement should be facilitated by a manager 
who is not part of the interview panel but who has undertaken recruitment and 
selection training.  Notes of the interaction with service users and the views of 
service users should be reported to the interview panel by the facilitator. 
 
The interview panel must ensure that a full employment history has been provided by 
the candidate on the application form. The interview process should be used to 
investigate any gaps or inconsistencies in this information.  At least one member of 
the panel should have undertaken safer recruitment training and passed the 
assessment. 
 
20.0 Additional information – posts working with children 
 
The recruitment processes must align with the Cambridgeshire & Peterborough 
Safeguarding Children’s Boards Key Safeguarding Employment Standards.  
 
For all posts within children’s services, references for short listed candidates will be 
sought prior to interview.  To ensure receipt of the reference in time it is 
recommended that four weeks is allowed between short listing and the interview 
date.  
  
For all posts in residential childcare (and other posts where the manager considers it 
necessary), an important part of the selection process is a visit to the place of work, 
incorporating a meeting/interview with a group of residents, children or young people. 
The young people will then feedback their views and comments to the main panel. 
 
Following the visit, there should be an assessment, which incorporates a group 
discussion / interview on a topic related to residential childcare, such as punishment, 
care, secure care, relationships, etc. Participants should be assessed on their 
knowledge, contribution and interaction in a team setting. 
 
For all posts in residential childcare (and other posts where the manager considers it 
necessary) a Personal interview (also known as a Warner interview) is required.  
These interviews are undertaken by a fully trained personal interviewer who may or 
may not be a directly employed member of staff.  Personal interviews explore the 

31



Recruitment Procedure 

Recruitment Procedure  

 Appendix 2 - For EC Approval 26.01.12 

 

Page 14 of 21 

 

 

applicant’s attitudes towards children and young people, their perceptions about the 
boundaries of acceptable behaviour towards children, and questions about sexual 
boundaries and attitudes.  For some other posts within children’s services (outside of 
residential child care) these questions may be incorporated into the selection process 
in some other way.  
 
Where necessary ability tests may be undertaken to identify candidates’ strengths 
and weaknesses 
 
The interview panel must ensure that a full employment history has been provided by 
the candidate on the application form. It is the responsibility of the interview panel to 
probe in depth any concerns, gaps, or discrepancies arising from the information 
provided by the applicant and/or a referee to confirm the truth and accuracy of the 
details. 
 
Authenticity of qualifications and registration where applicable must be undertaken 
(usually by Business Support HR) and signed off by the manager prior to the offer of 
employment being made. 
 
The interview panel must take seriously any concerns, even if unsubstantiated, about 
a candidate’s suitability, even though they may appear to have met the person 
specification.  All concerns should be discussed as part of the panel decision making 
process.  Where necessary the recruiting manager should obtain further information 
if they have concerns regarding any of the details. 
 
The interview panel should complete the interview matrix for all candidates, giving 
reasons at the end why the candidate is, or is not, suitable for employment. This 
matrix should be completed and signed by the recruiting manager. 
 
The interview panels should be balanced by ethnicity and gender, where possible. 
 
21.0 Safeguarding – the personal (Warner) interview 
 
These interviews apply to those posts working with children including:   

• Looked After Children; 

• Children who are at potential risk of significant harm; 

• Disabled children (who may have intimate care needs) 

• Children who are excluded from school 

• Children who live away from home 

• Sick children 
 
For posts where staff work with children in vulnerable situations and where they have 
sole care or responsibility for a child or group of children including:  

• Staff who supervise children on activities away from home such as 
residential trips; 

• Peripatetic professionals who work on a one to one basis with children 
without being supervised during such work 

 
then it is the policy of the council to undertake an additional safeguarding (known as 
Warner or Personal) interview.   The aim of the Warner/Personal interview is to 
address areas that are more difficult to assess in the formal interview setting.   
 
Standard 27 of The National Minimum Standards (DOH, 2002) requires local 
authorities to exercise care in the selection of all staff and volunteers working with 

32



Recruitment Procedure 

Recruitment Procedure  

 Appendix 2 - For EC Approval 26.01.12 

 

Page 15 of 21 

 

 

children in children’s homes.  The Bichard Report recommended the assessment of 
personal qualities during the selection process in other posts within children’s 
services. 
 
Areas of assessment include: 
 

• Motivation  
• Integrity and values  
• Authority  
• Accountability  
• Ethical and diversity standards  
• Emotional resilience  
• Team work  

 
Elements include: 
 

• Identification of support for candidate if necessary  
• Careful recording to evidence findings  
• Feedback to candidate  

 
Training is essential for staff prior to undertaking these interviews.  A list of trained 
interviewers is available from children’s services.  Further detail is given in the 
Peterborough safeguarding children’s board document ‘Criteria for Warner 
interviewing’.  
 
22.0  Making a Selection decision 
 
The information obtained in the application, the interview, and any selection tests 
(and references if they have been obtained beforehand) will allow candidates to be 
assessed against the person specification and a selection decision to be made. The 
assessment must be made on the evidence and not on unsubstantiated ‘feelings’.   
 
Before starting the interviews, the panel should decide which requirements from the 
person specification carry the greatest weight for determining successful job 
performance. This will be important later for the decision-making stage. These 
requirements shouldn’t include (for example) essential qualifications – as it should 
already have been established that all short listed candidates meet these. 
 
The online recruitment system specifies a scoring requirement for each applicant 
against each question asked and should be used to rate the applicants from 1 (Poor) 
to 5 (Excellent). 
 

Score Description Relation to Job Performance 

5 Excellent A full response which demonstrated in-depth knowledge and 
understanding of the subject/ full possession of the 
requirement for superior job performance. 

4 Good  A good response which answered the question and showed 
depth of understanding and knowledge/ full possession of 
the requirement for effective job performance 

3 Satisfactory A response that was relevant and showed some 
understanding/ meets base requirements for adequate 
performance with scope for further development. 

2 Less than 
satisfactory 

A response which was relevant but superficial and failed to 
demonstrate depth of understanding/ candidate requires 
significant further development to demonstrate the 

33



Recruitment Procedure 

Recruitment Procedure  

 Appendix 2 - For EC Approval 26.01.12 

 

Page 16 of 21 

 

 

requirement satisfactorily. 

1 Poor A response which was inadequate but which had some 
relevance/ candidate falls well below the base requirement 
for adequate performance and is unlikely to demonstrate 
competency without a great deal of further development 

 
Throughout the interview, the panel should continue to focus on all the requirements 
being assessed. After each interview, individual panel members should separately 
consider all the evidence gathered from the candidate, referring to their notes as 
necessary, without conferring with the other panel members. 
 
When all the interviews are complete, and any additional assessment results are 
available, the full panel should share and pool their assessment of the candidate and 
scores. The panel should discuss any large discrepancies between different panel 
member’s assessments of a candidate on any of the requirements. The panel should 
then be able to identify which candidates are appointable, and a score for each 
candidate.  The job should be offered to the applicant who best meets the essential 
criteria for the role.  The new appointment form should then be completed and 
forwarded to Business Support (HR) with all the relevant accompanying documents. 
 
Those on the recruitment panel must be satisfied that the approach to the selection 
procedure and the final decision can be justified at a later date. 

34



Recruitment Procedure 

Recruitment Procedure  

 Appendix 2 - For EC Approval 26.01.12 

 

Page 17 of 21 

 

 

 
23.0  New Appointment form 

FOR HR USE ONLY HR / PAYROLL APPOINTMENT NOTIFICATION FORM 

CONFIDENTIAL WHEN COMPLETED Payroll / Emp. No.  

Please note that all sections are to be completed by the Section Head / Interviewing Officer where indicated, paying particular 
attention to sections highlighted in Red. 

If in doubt as to what is required please email HRSupport@peterborough.gov.uk  

 Please ensure all relevant documentation is returned with the appointment form as soon as possible e.g. completed 
application form, interview notes, copies of identification documents and formal qualifications if applicable. Failure to 

supply appropriate documents may delay payment for employee  

PAYROLL CUT OFF DATE IS 10
TH
 OF THE MONTH [or previous working day if the 10th is aweekend or Bank Holiday]] 

 EMPLOYEE INFORMATION 

Details: New Starter [not existing PCC employee] / Current employee change of post / Current employee Additional 
Post  

Title: Mr / Mrs / Miss / Ms / _____ * Initials:  

Forename 1:  Forename 2:  

Surname  Known As  

 

 

Appointee  
Full Home 
Address: 

 Post Code:  

Home Tel:  Date of Birth: +  

Mobile Tel:  Dfee Number ~  

FOR HR USE ONLY 

Gender: Male / Female * Ethnic Origin:   

Continuous Service Date:  Disabled? Yes / No / Not stated  

NI Number:  Pay-point:  

APPOINTMENT 
DETAILSType of 
Contract: 

Temporary / Permanent / Fixed Term / Casual / Relief / Term-Time Only /  * 

Working Basis: Full Time / Part- Time / Job Share Contractual Hours:  

Name of Previous post-holder: 
[leaver form to be completed ONLY if employee is 
leaving PCC] 

 Flexi-time: Yes / No * 

Date of Interview:  Starting date for contract:  

Post No:  Post Title:  

Department:  Division:  

Team:  Reports to:  

Name of Buddy  or Line 
Manager 

 Telephone No:  

Address at which post is situated:  

Grade of Post:  Scale points from:  to:  

Appointment at Grade Point:  Starting Salary or Hourly Rate:  

If Temporary / Fixed Term, length of Contract or end date:  

If not employed whole year [e.g. term time only] number of contractual weeks:  

35



Recruitment Procedure 

Recruitment Procedure  

 Appendix 2 - For EC Approval 26.01.12 

 

Page 18 of 21 

 

 

If Part-time / Job Share, details of hours in one week and number of hours per day:  

%:  01      Salary 
Charge 
Code: %:  01      

Key User Status:   Yes /  No 

Car Loan being transferred? Yes / No * Shift Allowance percentage if payable  

Relocation Allowance? Yes / No * Telephone Allowance? Yes / No * 

Overtime Rate: No OT / Time / Time and a Half * 

Specify any 
other 
allowances or 
protection: 

 

OTHER DETAIL Interview expense claim 

form to be issued? 
Yes/No * References to be requested: 

Yes / No / 
Already Requested 

Please note:- If YES is NOT selected references will not be requested until HR Support receive the signed Contract & 
Offer Letter from the appointed candidate .  This may delay the employees start date. 

Medical Form to be sent: Yes/No * Do they require a probationary period? Yes / No * 

Politically Restricted Appointment? Yes/No * CRB Check required? Standard / Enhanced / No * 

Post No. employee is leaving if change of 
post 

 
Is this post now empty and 
obsolete? 

Yes / No / Not applicable* 

Confirmation of Pre-employment checks  [These are needed as evidence of completion for various 

purposes including verification that safe recruitment requirements have been met. A copy of the documents 
used to verify the successful candidate’s identity and qualifications must be attached for the personal file] 

Identity confirmed at Interview - original documents seen & attached  
[initial and date]: 

Yes \ No 

Confirmed able to work in the UK [initial at date]: Yes \ No 

Are any formal qualifications required for this post? Yes \ No 

If yes, attach copies initial and date to confirm qualifications 
checked: 

Enclosed \ Not Enclosed 

INFORMING UNSUCCESSFUL CANDIDATES  
A member of the Interview Panel is required to inform ALL unsuccessful candidates by telephone 

MANAGER \ DEPARTMENTAL AUTHORISATION 

Form completed by: 

Job Title: 

Signature:               Date:  

HR CHECKED \ CONFIRMED  [For HR Admin \ Payroll Use Only] 

Checked post vacant  If not vacant: Bucket post \ maternity or sick cover* 

Signature:               Date:  

Key  - Fields marked * Require deletion of options not applicable. 

 

36



Recruitment Procedure 

Recruitment Procedure  

 Appendix 2 - For EC Approval 26.01.12 

 

Page 19 of 21 

 

 

 

24.0 Appointment of Directors & Heads of Service 
 
The Employment and Appeals Committee will approve the appointment of senior 
managers at and above Head of Service level.  The Chief Executive’s appointment is 
subject to a separate procedure reserved to Council. 
 
Before any decision is made by the committee every member of the executive must 
be notified of:- 

• The name of the person to be appointed 

• Any other particulars relevant to the appointment 

• The period within which objection to the appointment is to be made, which 
shall be at least 2 clear days. 

 
The committee may only approve the appointment where no material or well founded 
objection has been made by the Leader of the executive on behalf of the leader or 
other members of the executive. 
 
Once a candidate has been selected the recruiting manager will need to complete an 
Appointment Notification Form and send this to Business Support (HR) for the 
conditional offer documentation to be sent. 
 
25.0 Pre-employment checks 
 
All offers of appointment are conditional subject to: 

• At least two Satisfactory references 
• Medical Clearance from the councils Occupational Health team 
• Completion of the City Council’s equal opportunities monitoring form (if not 

already submitted at application stage)  
• Evidence of the Right to Work in the UK 
• Proof of registration with a professional body (for specific posts)  

 
In addition, the following checks will be required for all posts that fall within the 
definition of Regulated Activity:- 

• An Enhanced CRB Check (full details are given in the council’s policy on 
CRB/Vetting & Barring). 

• Proof of qualification/s 
• Proof of registration with a professional body (for specific posts)  

 
No appointment will be confirmed until the recruiting manager signs the appointment 
form stating that all the checks are in place and are satisfactory. 
 
If any of the above checks are not undertaken or are not satisfactory then the 
conditional offer will be withdrawn.  
 
For most jobs in the council, references are only taken up for the person who is 
offered the post, and are requested after the interview.  A form is sent to the referee 
requesting information in a standard format.  However, for posts within children’s 
services, (or those working with vulnerable adults) references will be requested for all 
the short listed candidates prior to interview.  Copies of the references are then given 
to all members of the panel and any concerns or discrepancies must be discussed 
with the applicant at the interview.  A standard children’s services reference request 
form is issued to referees for completion, in line with national guidelines.  Where ever 
possible a telephone call should be made to the referee to confirm that they did write 
and sign the reference.  If the reference has not arrived by the time the interview 

37



Recruitment Procedure 

Recruitment Procedure  

 Appendix 2 - For EC Approval 26.01.12 

 

Page 20 of 21 

 

 

takes place it is vital that the manager asks the applicant at the interview if there is 
anything they wish to discuss in respect of the questions asked of the referee and 
also that they scrutinise very carefully the reference when it is received. 
 
26.0 Feedback to unsuccessful candidates 
 
The recruiting manager must be prepared to give feedback to all candidates that 
request it as soon as possible after it is requested. It is a very important part of good 
recruitment and selection practice and can make a significant difference to the way 
candidates feel about the organisation, even if their application has been 
unsuccessful.  
 
Included in the feedback must be an overview of the results of any tests and 
exercises as well as assessments from the interview. The feedback should be 
accurate, factual and helpful. It is important to provide a balance between those 
areas where the candidate did well or showed strength, and areas of weakness, 
where the candidate needs to improve for the future. 
 
27.0 Record keeping 
 
Accurate record-keeping is an essential part of recruitment for various reasons 
including: 

• it enables accurate and objective investigation of any complaints raised as 
speedily as possible  

• meaningful feedback can be given to unsatisfactory applicants 
• to enable an accurate and speedy response in cases where complainants 

invoke their statutory rights under anti-discrimination legislation  
 
The following documents must be retained:     

• application form and related documents (e.g. C.V., written submission)* 
• online short listing information* 
• completed interview assessment notes 
• copies of assessment tests and exercises, including the results  
• candidate’s written exercise responses, test score sheets, presentation 

handouts etc  
• all/any other notes taken by the panel members at each stage of the interview 

process 
*held online and managed by the Business Support (HR) team. 
 
Documents must be held and destroyed in accordance with the councils Retention & 
Destruction policy.  Documents are stored for a period of six months or a longer 
specified period of time where necessary in a secure place where confidentiality can 
be assured.  Duplicate copies of documents must be securely destroyed.  After the 
defined period the documents must be confidentially destroyed.  
 
28.0 Monitoring & Complaints 
 
The equality information is completed online by the applicant and is unseen by the 
recruiting manager.  A further request for equality information is sent to the 
successful applicant when the job is offered to them to try to ensure the most up to 
date data is held.  For unsuccessful applicants this information will be retained for 6 
months after the date of the final interview. 
 

38



Recruitment Procedure 

Recruitment Procedure  

 Appendix 2 - For EC Approval 26.01.12 

 

Page 21 of 21 

 

 

Any complaints regarding a recruitment exercise should be raised through the 
Grievance Procedure for internal applicants and the Council Complaint’s Procedure 
for external applicants. 
 
29.0 Starting work 
 
The induction document must be completed for all new staff who should also attend a 
departmental induction (arranged within their first weeks of employment) and the 
council’s corporate induction training session, ideally within the first few months of 
joining the council.  Full details of the corporate induction is available from the 
council’s Learning & Development Team.  
 
30.0 Probationary period 
 
The Probationary Policy & Procedure provides a basis for managing the 
performance, attendance, capability and conduct effectively of newly appointed 
employees during the probationary period.  It applies to all newly appointed 
employees.  
 
Every appointment is subject to a six month probationary period (unless the 
appointee is an existing employee).  The period of probation may be extended in 
some circumstances. Advice on performance issues during probationary periods is 
available from the HR Business Partner.  For further information refer to the 
Probation Policy <insert link> and Probation Procedure <insert link> available on 
InSite. 
 
 
 

39



40

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3a 24 November 2011
	3b 22 December 2011
	4 Changes to Employee Policies and Procedures
	120126 - Employment Committee - Changes To Employee Policies And Procedures - Appendix A
	120126 - Employment Committee - Changes To Employee Policies And Procedures - Appendix B
	120126 - Employment Committee - Changes To Employee Policies And Procedures - Appendix C


